To:

Financial Supervision Commission
Investment Activity Supervision Department
16 Budapest Str.

Sofia

Cc:

Bulgarian Stock Exchange - Sofia AD
6 Tri Ushi Str.

Sofia

Re: Annual non-consolidated (audited) financial statements of First Investment Bank AD as at 31 Dec 2017

Dear Sirs,

In compliance with the requirements of the Public Offering of Securities Act (POSA) and the regulations for
its implementation, in our capacity as public company and issuer of bonds admitted for trading at a regulated
market, we hereby submit the audited non-consolidated financial statements of First Investment Bank AD as
at 31 December 2017, containing

v

v

Audited unconsolidated financial statements as at 31.12.2015 and notes thereto, accompanied
by the auditor’s report as per Art. 100m, para. 4(1) of POSA,;

2017 Annual Report of First Investment Bank pursuant to Art. 100m, Para. 4(2) of POSA,;

Corporate Governance Code and Disclosure Policy of First Investment Bank in compliance with
the requirement of Article 100m, para. 4(3) of POSA regarding the programme for
implementation of the international standards for good corporate governance;

Declaration under Art. 1000, para. 4(4) of POSA;

Information on First Investment Bank under Annex 11 to Ordinance Ne2 of the Financial
Supervision Commission on the prospects of public offering and admittance for trade on a
regulated market of securities and for the disclosure of information by public companies and
other issuers of securities;

We are also sending you the Score Card for assessment of corporate governance in Bulgaria.

Sincerely,
(signed) (signed)
Nedelcho Nedelchev Svetozar Popov
Chief Executive Officer Executive Director

Chairman of the MB Member of the MB
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Separate statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2017

in BGN ‘000

Note 2017 2016
Interest income 340,218 426,313
Interest expense (92,640) (118,690)
Net interest income 6 247,578 307,623
Fee and commission income 116,650 108,067
Fee and commission expense (17,799 (18,892)
Net fee and commission income 7 98,851 89,175
Net trading income 8 15,435 14,047
Other net operating income 9 27,450 45,700
TOTAL INCOME FROM BANKING OPERATIONS 389,314 456,545
Administrative expenses 10 (196,635) (185,055)
Allowance for impairment 11 (77,511) (154,776)
Other expenses, net 12 (20,480) (16,322)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 94,688 100,392
Income tax expense 13 (9,222) (10,207)
NET PROFIT 85,466 90,185
Other comprehensive income for the period
Iltems which should or may be reclassified as profit or
loss
Revaluation reserve on available for sale investments 2,067 6,184
Total other comprehensive income 2,067 6,184
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 87,533 96,369

The statement of comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the

financial statements set out on pages 5 to 66.

NEDELCHO NEDELCHEV
Chief Executive Officer

SVETOSLAV MOLDOVANSKY
Chief Operations Officer

SVETOZAR POPOQV
Chief Risk Officer

JIVKO TODOROV
Chief Financial Officer

Audited as per the auditors' report BDO Bulgaria OOD

dated 30/03/2018
Nedyalko Apostolov
Partner

Mazars OOD

Athanassios Petropoulos
Partner

Stoyanka Apostolova
Registered auditor

responsible for the audit

Milena Mladenova-Nikolova

Registered auditor

responsible for the audit



Separate statement of the financial position as at 31 December 2017

in BGN ‘000

Note 2017 2016
ASSETS
Cash and balances with Central Banks 14 1,425,252 1,588,754
Financial assets held for trading 15 6,906 8,578
Investments available for sale 16 673,039 531,366
Financial assets held to maturity 17 19,615 243,463
Loans and advances to banks and other financial institutions 18 54,402 54,472
Loans and advances to customers 19 5,018,298 4,941,062
Property and equipment 20 89,271 93,888
Intangible assets 21 6,395 9,010
Derivatives held for risk management 1,596 1,818
Current tax assets 14 -
Repossessed assets 23 977,434 1,028,791
Investment Property 23a 218,212 222,267
Investments in subsidiaries 23b 36,357 36,357
Other assets 23c 115,780 92,644
TOTAL ASSETS 8,642,571 8,852,470
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Due to banks 24 5,743 6,736
Due to other customers 25 7,338,375 7,691,256
Liabilities evidenced by paper 26 118,517 70,367
Hybrid debt 27 208,786 208,740
Deferred tax liability 22 14,255 14,740
Current tax liabilities 2,111 69
Other liabilities 28 25,500 18,811
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,713,287 8,010,719
Issued share capital 29 110,000 110,000
Share premium 29 97,000 97,000
Statutory reserve 29 39,861 39,861
Revaluation reserve on available for sale investments 19,524 17,457
Revaluation reserve on property 4,500 4,500
Other reserves and retained earnings 29 658,399 572,933
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 929,284 841,751
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND GROUP EQUITY 8,642,571 8,852,470

The statement of the financial position is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial

statements set out on pages 5 to 66.

NEDELCHO NEDELCHEV

SVETOSLAV MOLDOVANSKY
Chief Executive Officer Chief Operations Officer

SVETOZAR POPQOV

Chief Risk Officer

JIVKO TODOROV
Chief Financial Officer

Audited as per the auditors' report dated BDO Bulgaria OOD

30/03/2018
Nedyalko Apostolov
Partner

Mazars OOD
Athanassios Petropoulos
Partner

Stoyanka Apostolova

Registered auditor

responsible for the audit

Milena Mladenova-Nikolova

Registered auditor

responsible for the audit



Separate statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2017

in BGN ‘000
2017 2016
Net cash flow from operating activities
Net profit 85,466 90,185
Adjustment for non-cash items
Allowance for impairment 77,511 154,776
Net interest income (247,578) (307,623)
Depreciation and amortization 15,725 16,639
Tax expense 9,222 10,207
Loss from sale and write-off of tangible and intangible fixed assets, net 220 1
(Profit) from sale of other assets, net (10,487) (2,296)
(Positive) revaluation of investment property - (9,213)
(69,921) (47,324)
Change in operating assets
Decrease in financial instruments held for trading 1,601 1,318
(Increase) in available for sale investments (142,084) (18,198)
(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances to banks and financial institutions (2,277) 9,551
(Increase)/decrease in loans to customers (269,150) 73,590
(Increase) in other assets (22,914) (659)
(434,824) 65,602
Change in operating liabilities
(Decrease) in deposits from banks (993) (3,608)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts owed to other depositors (323,358) 253,063
Net increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 6,689 (66,069)
(317,662) 183,386
Interest received 409,201 309,937
Interest paid (124,841) (131,420)
Dividends received 4,423 586
(Paid)/refunded profit tax, net (7,909) 158
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (541,533) 380,925
Cash flow from investing activities
(Purchase) of tangible and intangible fixed assets (8,994) (7,327)
Sale of tangible and intangible fixed assets 281 21
Sale of other assets 112,615 42,224
(Increase)/decrease of investments 223,848 (257,218)
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 327,750 (222,300)
Financing activities
Increase/(decrease) in borrowings 47,931 (63,414)
Repayment of perpetual debt - (41,732)
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 47,931 (105,146)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (165,852) 53,479
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF PERIOD 1,633,207 1,579,728
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD 1,467,355 1,633,207

The cash flow statement is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements

set out on pages 5 to 66.

NEDELCHO NEDELCHEV SVETOSLAV MOLDOVANSKY SVETOZAR POPOV
Chief Executive Officer Chief Operations Officer Chief Risk Officer
JIVKO TODOROV

Chief Financial Officer

Audited as per the auditors' report dated BDO Bulgaria OOD Stoyanka Apostolova
30/03/2018 Registered auditor
Nedyalko Apostolov responsible for the audit
Partner

Mazars OOD
Athanassios Petropoulos Milena Mladenova-Nikolova
Partner Registered auditor

responsible for the audit



Separate statement of shareholders’ equity for the year ended 31 December 2017

in BGN ‘000
Other Revaluation

Issued reserves reserve on

share and  available for Revaluation

capital Share retained sale reserve on  Statutory

premium  earnings  investments property reserve  Total

Balance at 01 January 2016 110,000 97,000 482,748 11,273 4,500 39,861 745,382
Total comprehensive income for
the period
Net profit for the year ended 31
December 2016 - - 90,185 - - - 90,185
Other comprehensive income for
the period
Revaluation reserve on available for
sale investments - - - 6,184 - - 6,184
Balance as at 31 December 2016 110,000 97,000 572,933 17,457 4,500 39,861 841,751
Total comprehensive income for
the period
Net profit for the year ended 31
December 2017 - - 85,466 - - - 85,466
Other comprehensive income for
the period
Revaluation reserve on available for
sale investments - - - 2,067 - - 2,067
Balance as at 31 December 2017 110,000 97,000 658,399 19,524 4,500 39,861 929,284

The statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements set

out on pages 5 to 66.

The financial statements have been approved by the Managing Board on 30 March 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

NEDELCHO NEDELCHEV
Chief Executive Officer

SVETOSLAV MOLDOVANSKY

Chief Operations Officer

SVETOZAR POPOV
Chief Risk Officer

JIVKO TODOROV
Chief Financial Officer

Audited as per the auditors' report dated

30/03/2018
Nedyalko Apostolov
Partner

Athanassios Petropoulos
Partner

BDO Bulgaria OOD

Mazars OOD

Stoyanka Apostolova
Registered auditor
responsible for the audit

Milena Mladenova-Nikolova

Registered auditor
responsible for the audit



Notes to the financial statements

@)

(b)

(€)

(d)
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Basis of preparation
Statute

First Investment Bank AD (the Bank) is incorporated in the Republic of Bulgaria and has its registered
office in Sofia, at 37 Dragan Tzankov Blvd.

The Bank has a general banking license issued by the Bulgarian National Bank (BNB) according to
which it is allowed to conduct all banking transactions permitted by Bulgarian legislation.

The Bank has foreign operations in Cyprus.

Following the successful Initial Public Offering of new shares at the Bulgarian Stock Exchange — Sofia,
on June 13th 2007 the Bank was registered as a public company in the Register of the Financial
Supervision Commission pursuant to the provisions of the Law on the Public Offering of Securities.

Statement of compliance

The separate financial statements were drawn up in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) endorsed by the European Commission.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Bank’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 2 (p).

Presentation
The financial statements are presented in Bulgarian Leva (BGN) rounded to the nearest thousand.

The financial statements are prepared on a fair value basis for derivative financial instruments, financial
assets and liabilities held for trading, and available-for-sale assets, except those for which a reliable
measure of fair value is not available. Other financial assets and liabilities and non-financial assets and
liabilities are stated at amortised cost or historical cost convention.

The present financial statements of the Bank are not consolidated. These individual financial statements
form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. Information about the basic earnings per
share is given in the consolidated financial statements.

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective as of 01 January 2017

The following amendments to the existing standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board and adopted by the EU are effective for the current period:

Amendments to IAS 7: Disclosure Initiative (issued on 29 January 2016), endorsed by the EU on 6
November 2017, published in the Official Journal on 9 November 2017

Amendments to IAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (issued on 19
January 2016), endorsed by the EU on 6 November 2017 published in the Official Journal on 9
November 2017

The adoption of these amendments to the existing standards has not led to any changes in the Bank’s
accounting policies.

Income recognition
Interest income

Interest income and expense is recognised in the profit or loss as it accrues, taking into account the
effective yield of the asset (liability) or an applicable floating rate. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. When calculating the



Notes to the financial statements
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(i)

(iii)

(d)

(i)

effective interest rate, the Bank estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument but not future credit losses.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all fees paid or received as well as discount and
premiums which are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or liability.

Fees and commissions

Fee and commission income arises on financial services provided by the Bank and is recognised in
profit or loss when the corresponding service is provided.

Net trading income

Net gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities held for trading includes those gains and losses
arising from disposals and changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities held for trading as
well as trading income in dealing with foreign currencies and exchange differences from daily
revaluation of the net open foreign currency position of the Bank.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive income is established. Usually this is the ex-
dividend date for equity securities.

Basis of consolidation of subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost.
Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Bulgarian leva, which is the Bank’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the
operations at the spot exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. . Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the functional currency at the
spot exchange rate at that date. Foreign currency differences arising on translation are difference
between amortised cost in functional currency in the beginning of period, adjusted with effective interest
and received payments during the period, and amortised cost in foreign currency at the spot exchange
rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at fair value are retranslated into the functional currency at the spot exchange rate at the date
that the fair value was determined.

Foreign operations

The functional currency of the foreign operations in Cyprus is determined by the management to be the
Euro. In determining the functional currency of the foreign operations, the Bank takes into account the
fact that they are carried out as an extension of the reporting entity.

Financial assets

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale financial
assets. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair
value through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated by management because its
performance is assessed and monitored on the basis of its fair value. Derivatives are also categorised
as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Bank provides money, goods or services directly to
a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Bank’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Were the Bank to sell or re-classify other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
assets, the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as available for sale.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

Recognition

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held to maturity and available
for sale are recognised on the date of the actual delivery of the assets. Loans are recognised when
cash is advanced to the borrowers. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

Measurement

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are recognised in profit or loss.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income, until the financial asset is derecognised or impaired. At this
time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified in
profit or loss.

Interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Bank'’s right to receive payment is established.

Fair value measurement principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date. The fair value of a liability
reflects its non-performance risk.

When applicable, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

When there is no quoted price in an active market, the Bank uses valuation techniques that maximise
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen
valuation technique incorporates all the factors that market participants would take into account in
pricing a transaction.
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Significant accounting policies, continued
Financial assets, continued
Fair value measurement principles, continued

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the
transaction price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Bank determines that
the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced
neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets, the financial instrument is initially measured at
fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the
transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis
over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable
market data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, the Bank measures
assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.

The Bank which holds portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities is are exposed to market risk
and credit risk. If the Bank manages these portfolios on the basis of its net exposure either to market
risk or credit risk, the fair value is measured on the basis of a price that would be received to sell a net
long position or paid to transfer a net short position for a particular risk exposure. Those portfolio-level
adjustments are allocated to the individual assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative risk
adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the portfolio.

The Bank recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Derecognition

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or when the Bank transfers these rights in a transaction in which substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred to the buyer. Any interest in transferred
financial assets that is created or retained by the Bank is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire.

The Bank enters into transactions whereby it transfers financial assets recognised in its statement of
financial position, but retains either all or substantially all risks and rewards of the transferred asset. If all
or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised in
the statement of financial position (an example of such transactions are repo deals).

In transactions in which the Bank neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset, it derecognises the asset if it does not retain control over the asset. The
rights and obligations retained in the transfer are recognised separately as assets and liabilities as
appropriate. In transfers in which, control over the asset is retained, the Bank continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to
changes in the value of the transferred asset.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash deposited with the central bank and
short-term highly liquid accounts and advances to banks with original maturity of up to three months.

Investments

Investments that the Bank holds for the purpose of short-term profit taking are classified as financial
assets for trading. Debt investments that the Bank has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity assets. Other investments are classified as available-for-sale assets.
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Securities borrowing and lending business and repurchase transactions
Securities borrowing and lending

Investments lent under securities lending arrangements continue to be recognised in the statement of
financial position and are measured in accordance with the accounting policy for assets held for trading
or available-for-sale as appropriate. Cash collateral received in respect of securities lent is recognised
as liabilities to either banks or customers. Investments borrowed under securities borrowing agreements
are not recognised. Cash collateral placements in respect of securities borrowed are recognised under
loans and advances to either banks or customers. Income and expenses arising from the securities
borrowing and lending business are recognised on an accrual basis over the period of the transactions
and are included in interest income or expense.

Repurchase agreements

The Bank enters into purchases (sales) of investments under agreements to resell (repurchase)
substantially identical investments at a certain date in the future at a fixed price. Investments purchased
subject to commitments to resell them at future dates are not recognised. The amounts paid are
recognised in loans to either banks or customers. The receivables are shown as collateralised by the
underlying security. Investments sold under repurchase agreements continue to be recognised in the
statement of financial position and are measured in accordance with the accounting policy for either
assets held for trading or available-for-sale as appropriate. The proceeds from the sale of the
investments are reported as liabilities to either banks or customers.

The difference between the purchase (sale) and resell (repurchase) considerations is recognised on an
accrual basis over the period of the transaction and is included in interest income (expenses).

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at ‘cost’, being their issue proceeds (fair value of consideration
received) net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost and
any difference between net proceeds and the redemption value is recognized in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective yield method.

If the Bank purchases its own debt, it is removed from the statement of financial position and the
difference between the carrying amount of a liability and the consideration paid is included in other
operating income.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position when the Bank has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the
transactions are intended to be settled on a net basis.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’'s recoverable
amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

(i) Loans and advances

A financial asset is impaired or an impairment loss is recognised, provided that there is objective
evidence of impairment ensuing from one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset and this event (or events) leading to loss has affected the estimated future cash flows from
the financial asset.

Events leading to loss are traceable and provable facts and events which give grounds to believe that a
given exposure may not be serviced as it is stipulated in the contract or that part of the debt may remain
unrecoverable. The Bank assumes that such events are: significant financial difficulty of the borrower; a
breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; it becoming
probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy; where due to economic or legal reasons relating to the
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(i)

(k)

borrows financial standing the Bank makes concessions which it would not otherwise have made;
expected negative impact on the borrower’s cash flow due to financial difficulties of a related party.

Exposures for which events leading to loss have been registered, where such events are expected to
have a significant impact on future cash flows, are categorized as non-performing and are subject to
specific impairment (calculated on the basis of individual cash flow or using the portfolio principle).

The Bank applies the principles of individual and portfolio assessment of risk exposures depending on
the exposure classification (performing/non-performing) and size. For all non-performing exposures
specific impairment is calculated on the basis of the individual cash flow, for individually significant
exposures, or — portfolio assessment for all other exposures. As regards performing exposures the
Bank applies the portfolio principle of assessment (taking into account losses that have occurred but
have not been recognised), grouping exposures with similar credit risk characteristics.

All exposures which are not impaired individually are subject to portfolio impairment based on common
credit risk characteristics. The characteristics (business segment, availability of resources, days
overdue) have been chosen so, that they can be sufficient indicators of the borrowers’ ability to pay all
amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assessed assets. The combination of these
credit characteristics determines the major risk parameters of an exposure (probability of default,
exposure at default, maturity, etc.) and the impairment loss which has to be recognised.

Loans and advances are presented net of specific and general allowances for impairment. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account.

Fully impaired risk exposures are written off where there is reasonable grounds to believe that all
financially sound means for limiting the loss have been exhausted.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
write down, the allowance reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets remeasured at fair value through differences in equity

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognised directly in
equity and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a financial instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal
recognised in profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of impaired equity security,
available for sale, is recognized directly in the comprehensive income.

Property and equipment

Land and buildings are presented in the statement of financial position at their revalued amount which
is the fair value of the asset as at the date of revaluation less any subsequent amortisation and
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. All others classes of items of property, plant and
equipment are stated in the statement of financial position at their acquisition cost less accumulated
depreciation and allowance for impairment.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis at prescribed rates designed to decrease the cost or
valuation of fixed assets over their expected useful lives. The annual rates of amortisation are as
follows:

Assets %
e  Buildings 3-4
e  Equipment 10-50
e  Fixtures and fittings 10-15
e Motor vehicles 20
e Leasehold Improvements 2-50

10
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Assets are not depreciated until they are brought into use and transferred from assets in the course of
construction into the relevant asset category.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired by the Bank are stated at cost, less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the asset. The annual
rates of amortisation are as follows:

Assets %
e Licenses and trademarks 14
e Software and licences 8-50

Investment Property

Investment property is property (land or a building or part of a building or both) held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or both. The Bank has chosen for its accounting policy to account for investment
property using the fair value model and applies this to all its investment property. Investment properties
are initially measured at cost and are subsequently measured using the fair value model, and the
revaluation income and expense is recognised in the profit for period in which they occurred. The
reclassification of repossessed assets reported as inventories into investment properties is possible
only where a contract to rent out the respective property has been signed. The fair value of assets
constituting investment property was determined by independent property assessors holding recognised
professional qualification and recent experience in assessing property with similar location and
category, using reliable techniques for determining fair values.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Bank has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and an reliable assessment of the amount due can be made. If the
effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability.

Acceptances

An acceptance is created when the Bank agrees to pay, at a stipulated future date, a draft drawn on it
for a specified amount. The Bank’s acceptances primarily arise from documentary credits stipulating
payment to be made a certain number of days after receipt of required documents. The Bank negotiates
most acceptances to be settled at a later date following the reimbursement from the customers.
Acceptances are accounted for as liabilities evidenced by paper.

(p) Off balance sheet commitments

(@)

In the ordinary course of its business, the Bank enters into off-statement of financial position
commitments such as guarantees and letters of credit. The Bank recognizes provision for off-statement
of financial position commitments when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event, when it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the
obligation, and when a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

Taxation

Tax on the profit for the year comprises current tax and the change in deferred tax. Current tax
comprises tax payable calculated on the basis of the expected taxable income for the year, using the
tax rates enacted by the statement of financial position date, and any adjustment of tax payable for
previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences between
the carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled. The effect on deferred tax of any changes in tax rates is
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(r)

0]

(ii)

charged to profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items previously recognised either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the unused tax losses and credits can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Information on the valuations and the valuation uncertainty, for which there is a significant risk of
change as of 31 December 2017 are stated below and are related to the impairment of financial
instruments, income tax and the following notes related to other elements of the financial statements:

e Note 5 - determining of the fair value of the financial instruments through valuation techniques, in
which the input data for the financial assets and liabilities are not based on the available market
information.

e Note 20 - determining of the fair value of land and buildings through valuation techniques, in which
the input data for the assets are not based on available market information.

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Bank reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment on a monthly basis. In determining whether
an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the Bank makes judgements as to whether
there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that
portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change
in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or national or local economic conditions that correlate
with defaults on assets in the group.

Individual impairment on loans and advances of the Bank is based on the best assessment of the
Management for the present value of future cash flows. When evaluating these cash flows the
Management makes an assessment of the financial position of every borrower and the net realizable
value of the collateral of the loan. Each impaired asset is assessed individually while the strategy for
reimbursement and the evaluation of the cash flows, considered as reimbursable, are approved
independently by the Restructuring Committee. Cash flows could be realized from loan repayments,
sale of the collateral, operations with the collateral and others depending on the individual situation and
the terms of the loan contract. The expected net realizable value of the collateral is regularly reviewed
and it is based on a combination of internal appraisal of the fair value, conducted by internal appraisers,
and external independent appraisal reports. The expected future cash flows are discounted at the initial
effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Group impairment covers loan losses inherent to a loan portfolio with similar loan characteristics, when
there is objective evidence, that it contains impaired loans, but specific impaired positions could still not
be identified. In assessing the need for group impairment Management uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment
similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience. The accuracy of the
impairment depends on the evaluation of the future cash flows when determining the individual
impairment and on the assumptions made and the parameters used in the model when determining the
group impairment.

Assessment of repossessed assets from collaterals

Assets accepted as collateral are recognized at the lower of the cost of acquisition and the net
realizable value. When evaluating the net realizable value of the assets the Bank prepares several
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(iii)

(s)

models for appraisal (e.g. discounted cash flows) and makes comparison to available market data (e.g.
similar market transactions, offers from potential buyers).

Income taxes

The Bank is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Bank
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Government of Bulgaria is responsible for providing pensions in Bulgaria under a defined
contribution pension plan. The Bank’s contributions to the defined contribution pension plan are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are
rendered by employees.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Bank’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value.

The Bank has an obligation to pay certain amounts to each employee who retires with the Bank in
accordance with Art. 222, § 3 of the Labor Code.

According to these regulations in the LC, when a labor contract of a bank’s employee, who has acquired
a pension right, is ended, the Bank is obliged to pay him compensations amounted to two gross monthly
salaries.

Where the employee has been with the same employer for the past 10 years, this employee is entitled
to a compensation amounting to six gross monthly salaries. As at balance sheet date, the Management
of the Bank estimates the approximate amount of the potential expenditures for every employee using
the projected unit credit method.

For the last two years the Bank has prepared estimates for the due provisions for pensions and has not
identified significant liabilities.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Bank is committed demonstrably, without
realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the
normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense if
the Bank has made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and
the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after
the reporting period, then they are discounted to their present value.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-
sharing plans if the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably. The Bank
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(®)

recognises as a liability the undiscounted amount of the estimated costs related to annual leave
expected to be paid in exchange for the employee’s service for the period completed.

New standards and interpretations not yet effective

Standards, interpretations and amendments in standards that are issued by IASB and endorsed
by EU but not yet effective

Amendments to IFRS 4: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
(issued on 12 September 2016), effective 1 January 2018, endorsed by the EU on 3 November 2017,
published in the Official Journal on 9 November 2017

These amendments are related to the application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and introduce two
approaches:

» overlay approach - companies which issue insurance contracts have the right to recognise the
changes occurring from application of IFRS 9 in other comprehensive income instead of in current profit
or loss until the issue of a new standard on insurance contracts; and

« deferral - right to defer the application of IFRS 9 until 2021 for companies whose activities are mainly
related to insurance. Entities which defer the application of IFRS 9 continue the apply the existing
requirements to financial instruments under IAS 39.

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (issued on 12 April 2016), effective 1
January 2018, endorsed by the EU on 31 October 2017, published in the Official Journal on 9
November 2017;

These amendments include instructions in identifying performance obligations, accounting for licences
of intellectual property and on the distinction between principal and agent (gross or net presentation of
revenues).

IFRS 16 Leases (issued on 13 January 2016), effective 1 January 2019, endorsed by the EU on 31
October 2017, published in the Official Journal on 9 November 2017

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (issued on 24 July 2014), effective 1 January 2018, endorsed by the EU
on 22 November 2016, published in the Official Journal on 29 November 2016;

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
The new standard introduces significant changes to the classification and assessment of financial
assets and a new model for the expected credit loss from impairment of financial assets. IFRS 9
includes new guidelines on the accounting for hedging.

The Bank's Management has identified the following areas that are expected to be most impacted by
the application of IFRS 9:

the classification and measurement of the Bank’s financial assets will need to be reviewed based on the
new criteria that considers the assets’ contractual cash flows and the business model in which they are
managed. Management holds most financial assets to hold and collect the associated cash flows and is
currently assessing the underlying types of cash flows to classify financial assets correctly.

Management expects the majority of held-to-maturity investments to continue to be accounted for at
amortised cost, while others amounting to BGN 9,785 thousand will be recognised at fair value in profit
or loss, as the cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest. Management does not
expect a significant effect on profit or loss from this change in accounting.

A number of available-for-sale financial assets at total amount of BGN 18,286 thousand are likely to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss as the cash flows are not solely payments of principal and
interest. The elated fair value gains will be transferred from the available-for-sale financial assets
reserve to retained earnings on 1 January 2018. Management does not expect a significant effect on
the equity components from this change in accounting.

The other financial assets held by the Bank include:

equity instruments, amounting to BGN 15,820 thousand currently classified as available-for-sale
financial assets for which a fair value through profit and loss valuation method will be applied. In relation
to this the Bank plans to reclassify as of 01 January 2018 form its revaluation reserve, net of taxes, in
other reserves and retained earnings the amount of BGN 4,904 thousand.
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- equity investments, amounting to BGN 4,164 thousand available-for-sale, currently measured at fair
value through profit or loss which will continue to be measured on the same basis under IFRS 9;

- debt instruments, amounting to BGN 9,830 thousand currently classified as held-to-maturity and
measured at amortised cost which meet the conditions for classification at amortised cost under IFRS 9.

IFRS 9 requires gains or losses realised on the sale of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income no longer to be transferred to profit or loss, but instead to be transferred from
reserve to retained earnings. In 2017, no such gains or losses were recognised in relation to the
disposal of available-for-sale financial assets.

An expected credit loss-based impairment should be recognised on the Bank’s trade receivables and
investments in debt-type assets currently classified as AFS and HTM unless classified as at fair value
through profit or loss in accordance with the new criteria. Based on the assessments undertaken to
date, the Bank expects a certain increase in the loss allowance for trade debtors by approximately
17.7%.

It will no longer be possible to measure equity investments at cost less impairment. Instead, all such
investments will be measured at fair value. Changes in fair value will be presented in current profit or
loss, except in case the Bank presents them in other comprehensive income without the right to
reverse.

At present the Bank intends to present the changes in the fair value of investments in equity instruments
in profit or loss, not in other comprehensive income.

If the bank continues to choose the measuring of certain financial liablities at fair value, the changes in
fair value will be recognised in other comprehensive income to the degree to which these changes refer
to the bank's own credit risk.

e IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (amended) - Hedge accounting, effective 01 January 2018, not yet
endorsed by the EU.

The amendments lead to significant changes in the accounting of hedging which allow companies to
disclose their activities related to risk management better in the financial statements by increasing the
possible hedged positions and hedging instruments and introduction of a principle method for
measuring the efficiency of hedging.

The management considers that these changes will not affect significantly the preparation of the Bank's
financial statements.

e |IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (amended) - Prepayment features with negative compensation, effective
1 January 2019, not yet endorsed by the EU.

The amendments enable companies to assess certain financial assets which might be prepaid with
negative compensation at fair value in other comprehensive income instead of in profit or loss.

e |FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (issued on 28 May 2014) including amendments to
IFRS 15: Effective date of IFRS 15 (issued on 11 September 2015), effective 1 January 2018, endorsed
by the EU on 22 September 2016, published in the Official Journal on 29 October 2016.

Documents issued by IASB/IFRICs not yet endorsed by the European Commission

These new or revised standards, new interpretations and amendments to existing standards that at the
reporting date are already issued by the International Accounting Standards Board have not yet been
endorsed by the EU and therefore are not taken into account by the Bank in preparing these financial
statements.

e |FRS 17 Insurance Contracts (issued on 18 May 2017), effective 1 January 2021
IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 and replaces IFRS 4 — Insurance Contracts. It requires a current
measurement model where estimates are re-measured each reporting period. Contracts are measured
using:
- discounted probability-weighted cash flows
- an explicit risk adjustment, and
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- a contractual service margin (“CSM”") representing the unearned profit of the contract which is
recognised as revenue over the coverage period

The standard allows a choice between recognising changes in discount rates either in the income
statement or directly in other comprehensive income. The choice is likely to reflect how insurers account
for their financial assets under IFRS 9.

The new rules will affect the financial statements and key performance indicators of all entities that
issue insurance contracts.

e |IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration (issued on 8

December 2016), effective 1 January 2018;
The interpretation clarifies the accounting for advance receipts or payments of non-monetary assets or
not-monetary liabilities before the entity has recognised the related assets, expenses or income. The
date of the transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial non-
monetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, a date of transaction is established for each payment or receipt.

e |IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (issued on 7 June 2017), effective 1 January 2019;
The interpretation clarifies how to apply the requirements of IAS 12 regarding the recognition and
assessment when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments.

e Amendments to IFRS 2: Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
(issued on 20 June 2016), effective 1 January 2018;

The amendment clarifies the basis for assessment of share-based payment transactions or equity-
settled transactions, as well as the accounting for changes in remuneration from provision if cash via
equity instruments.

e Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle (issued on 8 December 2016), effective 1
January 2018/1 January 2017;

*IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards — Deletion of short-term
exemptions for first-time adopters for transition to IFRS 7, IAS 19 and IFRS 10 which are no longer
applicable.

*]AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures — Measuring an associate or joint venture at fair
value. The amendment clarified that the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss an
investment in an associate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is a venture capital
organisation, or other qualifying entity, is available for each investment in an associate or joint venture
on an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition.

e Amendments to IAS 40: Transfers of Investment Property (issued on 8 December 2016), effective 1
January 2018;

The amendment clarifies that the transfer to and from investment property may be carried out only if
there is a change in use of property due to whether these properties begin to and cease to meet the
definition of investment property.

e Amendments to IFRS9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (issued on 12 October
2017), effective 1 January 2019;

The amendments enable companies to assess certain financial assets which might be prepaid with
negative compensation at fair value in other comprehensive income instead of in profit or loss.

¢ Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (issued on 12 October
2017), effective 1 January 2019.

The amendment clarifies that entities should disclose long-term interests in associates and joint
ventures for which the equity method of IFRS 9 is not applied.

e Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle (issued on 12 December 2017), effective 1
January 2019

¢ IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (amended) - Prepayment features with negative compensation, effective
1 January 2019, not yet endorsed by the EU.

The amendments enable companies to assess certain financial assets which might be prepaid with
negative compensation at fair value in other comprehensive income instead of in profit or loss.

e IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
(amended), date effective not defined, not yet endorsed by the EU.
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These amendments were proposed due to the conflict between the requirements of IAS 28 and IFRS 10
regarding the treatment of a sale or contribution of assets between the investor and the associate or
joint venture. As a result of these amendments a full gain or loss should be recognised, whether the
business is housed in a subsidiary or not. A partial gain or loss recognition is recognised if the
transaction involves assets which do not constitute a business, even if such assets are owned by the
subsidiary.

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts, effective 1 January 2016, not yet endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 14 permits an entity which is a first-time adopter of International Financial Reporting Standards to
continue to account for amounts related to regulated prices in accordance with the requirements of their
previous accounting base when applying IFRS. With a view to improving comparability with the reports
of entities already applying IFRS and not disclosing such amounts, the standard requires separate
presentation of the regulatory deferral account balances.

Risk management disclosures

A. Trading activities

The Bank maintains active trading positions in a limited number of non-derivative financial instruments.
Most of the Bank’s trading activities are customer driven. In anticipation of customer demand, the Bank
carries an inventory of money market instruments and maintains access to market liquidity by trading
with other market makers. These activities constitute the proprietary trading business and enable the
Bank to provide customers with money market products at competitive prices.

The Bank manages its trading activities by type of risk involved and on the basis of the categories of
trading instruments held.

(i) Credit risk

The risk that counterparts to financial instruments might default on their obligations. Default risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis subject to Group’s internal risk management procedures and is
controlled through minimum thresholds for the credit quality of the counterpart and setting limits on
exposure amount. Exposures arising from trading activities are subject to total exposure limits and are
authorised by the appropriate person or body as set out in credit risk management procedures.

Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to counterpart failing to deliver value (cash, securities or other
assets) under contractually agreed terms. When trades are not cleared through clearing agent
settlement risk is limited through simultaneous commencement of the payment and delivery legs.

(ii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. The Bank assumes market risk when taking positions in debt
instruments, equities, derivatives and foreign exchange transactions. These risks are managed by
enforcing limits on positions taken and their risk sensitivities as measured by value-at-risk, duration or
other measures appropriate for particular position in view of its sensitivity to risk factors. The major risk
factors that affect Bank’s trading activities are changes of interest rates (interest rate risk), changes of
exchange rates (foreign exchange risk) and changes of equity prices (equity price risk).

Exposure to market risk is formally managed in accordance with risk limits for buying or selling
instruments set by senior management .

The quantitative measurement of interest rate risk is performed by applying VaR (Value at Risk)
approach. The Value at Risk estimates the maximum loss that could occur over specified horizon, under
normal market conditions, due to adverse changes in market rates if the positions remain unchanged for
the specified time interval. Value at risk is calculated using one day horizon and 99 per cent confidence
level, meaning that there is 1% probability that a portfolio will incur a loss in one day greater than its
VaR. Parameters of the VaR model are estimated on the basis of exponentially weighted historical price
changes of risk factors.
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Risk management disclosures, continued

A. Trading activities, continued

The Value at Risk is calculated and monitored on a daily basis as part of the Bank’'s ongoing risk
management. The following table summarises the range of interest VaR for all positions carried at fair
value that was experienced in 2017:

31 December 2017 31 December
in BGN ‘000 2017 average low high 2016
VaR 573 1,162 492 2,254 1,481

B. Non-trading activities

Below is a discussion of the various risks the Bank is exposed to as a result of its non-trading activities
and the approach taken to manage those risks.

(i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities. Liquidity risk arises in the general funding of the Bank’s activities and in the
management of positions. It includes both the risk of being unable to fund assets at appropriate maturity
and rates and the risk of being unable to liquidate an asset at a reasonable price and in an appropriate
time frame to meet the liability obligations.

Funds are raised using a broad range of instruments including deposits, other liabilities evidenced by
paper, subordinated debt instruments and share capital. This enhances funding flexibility, limits
dependence on any one source of funds and generally lowers the cost of funds.

The Bank makes its best efforts to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of liabilities with a range of maturity. The Bank continually assesses liquidity risk by
identifying and monitoring changes in funding required to meet business goals and targets set in terms
of the overall Bank strategy.

In compliance with the requirements of the Law on Credit Institutions, Ordinance No 7 of BNB for the
organization and management of risks in banks and Directive 2014/59 / EU of the European Parliament
and of the Council for establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and
investment firms transposed in the Law on the Recovery and Restructuring of Credit Institutions and
Investment Intermediaries, First Investment Bank AD prepared a recovery plan if financial difficulties
occur. It includes qualitative and quantitative early warning signals and indicators of recovery such as
capital and liquidity indicators, income indicators, market-oriented indicators upon the occurrence of
which recovery measures are triggered. Liquidity indicators include Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR); net
withdrawal of financing; liquid assets to deposits by non-financial customers ratio; Net Stable Funding
Ratio (NSFR). Different stress test scenarios related to idiosyncratic shock, system shock and
aggregate shock have been prepared. In case of liquidity pressure, there are systems in place to ensure
prompt and adequate reaction which include obtaining additional funds from local and international
markets through issuance of appropriate financial instruments depending on the specific case as well as
sale of non-liquid assets. The levels of decision making are clearly determined.

In order to reduce the liquidity risk, preventive measures have been taken aimed to extend the maturity
of borrowings from customers, to encourage long-term relationships with clients and to increase
customer satisfaction. In order to adequately manage liquidity risk, the Bank monitors cash flows on a
daily basis.

The body managing liquidity is the Assets, Liability and Liquidity Management Council. One of the main
ratios used by the Bank for managing liquidity risk is the ratio of total liquid assets to total borrowings.
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31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Liquid assets ratio 25.12% 28.10%

The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the Bank into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining periods to repayment.

Maturity table as at 31 December 2017

From 3 .

Up to 1 Month Fr'\c;lm lhto 3 monthsto 1 More than 1 Mact'tu;’_ltygot Total
in BGN ‘000 onths year year efine
Assets
Cash and balances with Central Banks 1,425,252 - - - - 1,425,252
Financial assets held for trading 6,906 - - - - 6,906
Investments available for sale 657,219 - - - 15,820 673,039
Financial assets held to maturity - - 9,785 9,830 - 19,615
Loans and advances to banks and other
financial institutions 52,258 - - 2,144 - 54,402
Loans and advances to customers 361,046 226,920 970,662 3,459,670 - 5,018,298
Other financial assets, net 1,720 (124) - - - 1,596
Total financial assets 2,504,401 226,796 980,447 3,471,644 15,820 7,199,108
Liabilities
Due to banks 5,743 - - - - 5,743
Due to other customers 2,775,979 868,041 2,625,066 1,069,289 - 7,338,375
Liabilities evidenced by paper 2 - 241 118,274 - 118,517
Hybrid debt - - - - 208,786 208,786
Total financial liabilities 2,781,724 868,041 2,625,307 1,187,563 208,786 7,671,421
Net liquidity gap (277,323) (641,245) (1,644,860) 2,284,081 (192,966) (472,313)

The table shows mainly investments available for sale with a maturity of up to 1 month in order to reflect
the management’s ability to sell them within a short-term period.

Maturity table as at 31 December 2016

From 3

From 1to 3 monthsto 1 More than 1 Maturity not
in BGN ‘000 Up to 1 Month Months year year defined Total
Assets
Cash and balances with Central Banks 1,588,754 - - - - 1,588,754
Financial assets held for trading 8,578 - - - - 8,578
Investments available for sale 517,405 - - - 13,961 531,366
Financial assets held to maturity - 222,501 - 20,962 - 243,463
Loans and advances to banks and other
financial institutions 51,781 2,319 372 - - 54,472
Loans and advances to customers 415,403 205,220 1,098,807 3,221,632 - 4,941,062
Other financial assets, net 1,831 14 (27) - - 1,818
Total financial assets 2,583,752 430,054 1,099,152 3,242,594 13,961 7,369,513
Liabilities
Due to banks 6,736 - - - - 6,736
Due to other customers 2,584,928 847,075 3,066,606 1,192,647 - 7,691,256
Liabilities evidenced by paper 39 1,230 6,175 62,923 - 70,367
Hybrid debt - - - - 208,740 208,740
Total financial liabilities 2,591,703 848,305 3,072,781 1,255,570 208,740 7,977,099
Net liquidity gap (7,951) (418,251) (1,973,629) 1,987,024 (194,779) (607,586)
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B. Non-trading activities, continued

Risk management disclosures, continued

Liquidity risk, continued

The following table provides a remaining maturities analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the
Bank as at 31 December 2017 based on the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

in BGN ‘000

Financial assets
Cash and balances with Central
Banks

Financial assets held for trading
Investments available for sale

Financial assets held to maturity
Loans and advances to banks and
other financial institutions

Loans and advances to customers
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Due to banks

Due to other customers
Liabilities evidenced by paper
Hybrid debt

Total financial liabilities

Derivatives held for risk
management

For trading, outgoing cash flow

For trading, incoming cash flow
Cash flow from derivatives, net

From 3

Uptol From1lto monthstol More than
Month 3 Months year 1 year Total
1,425,252 - - - 1,425,252
6,906 - - - 6,906
657,219 - - 15,820 673,039
- - 9,785 10,164 19,949
52,258 - - 2,144 54,402
361,911 229,333 1,005,834 4,437,445 6,034,523
2,503,546 229,333 1,015,619 4,465,573 8,214,071
5,743 - - - 5,743
2,776,322 868,904 2,634,819 1,088,535 7,368,580
2 - 243 123,792 124,037
- - - 241,349 241,349
2,782,067 868,904 2,635,062 1,453,676 7,739,709
35,127 8,182 - - 43,309
36,847 8,058 - - 44,905
1,720 (124) - - 1,596

The following table provides a remaining maturities analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the
Bank as at 31 December 2016 based on the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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From 3
Uptol From1lto3 monthsto 1l Morethan 1

in BGN ‘000 Month Months year year Total

Financial assets

Cash and balances with Central Banks 1,588,754 - - - 1,588,754

Financial assets held for trading 8,578 - - - 8,578

Investments available for sale 517,405 - - 13,961 531,366

Financial assets held to maturity - 222,654 - 21,406 244,060

Loans and advances to banks and other

financial institutions 51,781 2,319 372 - 54,472

Loans and advances to customers 486,266 242,437 1,341,010 4,310,150 6,379,863

Total financial assets 2,652,784 467,410 1,341,382 4,345,517 8,807,093

Financial liabilities

Due to banks 6,736 - - - 6,736

Due to other customers 2,585,365 848,791 3,089,832 1,221,568 7,745,556

Liabilities evidenced by paper 39 1,231 6,214 65,924 73,408

Hybrid debt - - 22,883 241,349 264,232

Total financial liabilities 2,592,140 850,022 3,118,929 1,528,841 8,089,932
Derivatives held for risk management

For trading, outgoing cash flow 146,610 1,956 1,369 - 149,935

For trading, incoming cash flow 148,441 1,970 1,342 - 151,753
Cash flow from derivatives, net 1,831 14 (27) - 1,818

The expected cash flows of the Bank from some financial assets and liabilities are different from the
cash flows as per the loan contract. The main differences are:

e There is an expectation that the deposits on demand and term deposits will remain stable and will
increase.

e Retail mortgages have original maturity of 25 years on average, but the expected average effective
maturity is 14 years as some clients take advantage of the early repayment possibility.

As part of the liquidity risk management, the Bank keeps available liquid assets. They consist of cash,
cash equivalents and debt securities, which could be sold immediately in order to provide liquidity.

Liquid assets

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

in thousands of BGN
Balances with BNB 874,096 1,134,245
Current accounts and amounts with other banks 585,440 466,986
Unencumbered debt securities 461,492 633,146
Gold 6,089 6,992
Total liquid assets 1,927,117 2,241,369

Reasonable liquidity management requires avoidance of concentration of the borrowings from large
depositors. Analysis of the significant borrowings in terms of total amount is performed on a daily basis
and the diversity of the total liabilities portfolio is supervised.
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Notes to the financial statements

(i)

As at 31 December 2017 the thirty largest non-bank unguaranteed depositors represent 4.20% of total
deposits from other customers (31 December 2016: 6.07%).

Market risk
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Bank’s operations are subject to the risk of interest
rate fluctuations to the extent that interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities mature or
reprice at different times or in differing amounts. In the case of floating rate assets and liabilities the
Bank is also exposed to basis risk, which is the difference in repricing characteristics of the various
floating rate indices, such as the Bulgarian Basic Interest Rate, the LIBOR and EURIBOR, although
these indices tend to move in high correlation. In addition, the actual effect will depend on a number of
other factors, including the extent to which repayments are made earlier or later than the contracted
dates and variations in interest rate sensitivity within repricing periods and among currencies.

In order to quantify the interest rate risk of its non-trading activities, the Bank measures the impact of a
change in the market rates both on net interest income and on the Bank’s economic value defined as
the difference between fair value of assets and fair value of liabilities.

The interest rate risk on the economic value of the Group following a standardised shock of +100bp/-
100bp as at 31 December 2017 is BGN +24.6/-15.2 Mio.

The interest rate risk on the Bank's net interest income one year forward following a standardised shock
of +100bp/-100bp as at 31 December 2017 is BGN 8.5/-11.1 Mio.

Net interest income Equity
100 bp 100 bp
100 bp increase decrease 100 bp increase decrease
Effect in millions of BGN
31 December 2017
as at 31 December 8.5 -11.1 24.6 -15.2
Average for the period 51 -6.1 18.3 -14.5
Maximum for the period 8.5 -3.9 24.6 -12.7
Minimum for the period 2.6 -11.1 154 -19.2
31 December 2016
as at 31 December -1.3 -1.6 18.5 -17.5
Average for the period 0.9 -3.7 18.2 -17.3
Maximum for the period 1.9 -1.6 19.8 -145
Minimum for the period -1.3 -4.8 154 -18.9
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Notes to the financial statements

3. Risk management disclosures, continued

B. Non-trading activities, continued

(ii) Market risk, continued

Interest rate risk, continued

The following table indicates the effective interest rates at 31 December 2017 and the periods in which
financial liabilities and assets reprice.

Fixed rate instruments

Less Betweenl Between 3

Floating rate than 1 month and months and More than
in BGN ‘000 Total Instruments month 3 months 1 year 1 year
Assets
Cash and balances with Central
Banks 607,359 561,691 45,668 - - -
Financial assets held for trading 2,742 - 2,742 - - -
Investments available for sale 657,219 21,129 636,090 - - -
Financial assets held to
maturity 19,615 - - - 9,785 9,830
Loans and advances to banks
and other financial institutions 24,581 - 24,581 - - -
Loans and advances to
customers 4,430,848 3,197,571 17,799 24,440 256,876 934,162
Total interest-bearing assets 5,742,364 3,780,391 726,880 24,440 266,661 943,992
Liabilities
Due to banks 5,743 5,743 - - - -
Due to other customers 7,312,758 1,822,302 928,060 868,041 2,625,066 1,069,289
Liabilities evidenced by paper 118,517 114,529 - - 241 3,747
Hybrid debt 208,786 - - - - 208,786
Total interest-bearing
liabilities 7,645,804 1,942,574 928,060 868,041 2,625,307 1,281,822

23



Notes to the financial statements

3. Risk management disclosures, continued

B. Non-trading activities, continued

(ii) Market risk, continued

Interest rate risk, continued

The following table indicates the effective interest rates at 31 December 2016 and the periods in which
financial liabilities and assets reprice.

Fixed rate instruments

Between 1 Between 3

Floating rate Less than month and months and More than
in BGN ‘000 Total Instruments 1 month 3 months 1 year 1 year
Assets
Cash and balances with Central
Banks 509,043 301,322 207,721 - - -
Financial assets held for trading 4,687 - 4,687 - - -
Investments available for sale 517,405 26,304 491,101 - - -
Financial assets held to
maturity 243,463 - 222,501 - 20,962
Loans and advances to banks
and other financial institutions 17,447 - 17,447 - - -
Loans and advances to
customers 4,531,560 3,453,495 13,673 40,248 219,054 805,090
Total interest-bearing assets 5,823,605 3,781,121 734,629 262,749 219,054 826,052
Liabilities
Due to banks 6,736 6,736 - - -
Due to other customers 7,663,984 1,681,261 876,395 847,075 3,066,606 1,192,647
Liabilities evidenced by paper 70,367 21,601 17 1,260 1,250 46,239
Hybrid debt 208,740 - - - - 208,740
Total interest-bearing
liabilities 7,949,827 1,709,598 876,412 848,335 3,067,856 1,447,626
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Notes to the financial statements

3.

Risk management disclosures, continued

B. Non-trading activities, continued

(ii) Market risk, continued

(iii)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Bank is exposed to currency risk in performing
transactions in foreign currencies and foreign-currency denominated financial instruments.

As a result of the currency Board in place in Bulgaria, the Bulgarian currency is pegged to the Euro. As
the currency in which the Bank presents it financial statements is the Bulgarian lev, the Bank’s financial
statements are effected by movements in the exchange rates between the Bulgarian lev and currencies
other than the Euro.

The Bank’s transactional exposures give rise to foreign currency gains and losses that are recognised in
profit or loss. These exposures comprise the monetary assets and monetary liabilities of the Bank that
are not denominated in the presentation currency of the Bank. These exposures were as follows:

in BGN ‘000 2017 2016
Monetary assets

Euro 3,720,721 4,038,157
US dollar 559,932 770,723
Other 119,521 101,343
Gold 6,089 6,992
Monetary liabilities

Euro 2,940,322 3,170,405
US dollar 559,945 770,289
Other 119,284 101,378
Gold 2,186 3,591
Net position

Euro 780,399 867,752
US dollar (13) 434
Other 237 (35)
Gold 3,903 3,401

In respect of monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies that are not economically hedged, the
Bank manages foreign currency risk in line with policy that sets limits on currency positions and dealer
limits.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Bank
by failing to discharge an obligation. The Bank is subject to credit risk through its lending activities and
in cases where it acts as an intermediary on behalf of customers or other third parties or issues
guarantees. The management of the credit risk exposures to borrowers is conducted through regular
analysis of the borrowers’ credit worthiness and the assignment of a rating grade. Exposure to credit
risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral and guarantees.
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Notes to the financial statements

3.

Risk management disclosures, continued

B. Non-trading activities, continued

(iii)

In thousands

Credit risk, continued

The table below sets out information about maximum exposure to credit risk:

Loans and advances

Loans and advances
to banks and
balances with central

Investments and
financial assets

Off balance sheet

of BGN to other customers banks held for trading commitments
2017 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

Carrying

amount 5,018,298 4,941,062 1,287,623 1,484,576 679,576 765,555 - -

Amount

committed/

guaranteed - - - - - 820,432 698,000

The Bank’s primary exposure to credit risk arises through its loans and advances. The amount of credit
exposure in this regard is represented by the carrying amounts of the assets on the balance sheet.

These exposures are as follows:

31 December 2017

Class of exposure

Performing
Collectively impaired

Non-performing
Collectively impaired
Individually impaired

Total

31 December 2016

Class of exposure

Performing
Collectively impaired

Non-performing
Collectively impaired
Individually impaired

Total

Gross amount of loans
and advances to

in thousands of BGN

Carrying amount of loans
customers and advances to customers

4,378,341 4,364,460
375,642 181,299
856,174 472,539

5,610,157 5,018,298

Gross amount of loans
and advances to

in thousands of BGN

Carrying amount of loans
customers and advances to customers

4,347,663 4,338,965
422,035 213,944
996,907 388,153

5,766,605 4,941,062

Exposures classification into risk classes reflects the management’s estimate regarding the loans

recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2017 the gross amount of overdue loans and advances to customers measured as
exposures 90+ days overdue is BGN 989,071 thousand (2016: BGN 1,011,689 thousand).

26



Notes to the financial statements

3.

Risk management disclosures, continued

B. Non-trading activities, continued

(iii)

Credit risk, continued

In addition, the Bank is exposed to off-balance sheet credit risk through commitments to extend credits
and issue contingent liabilities (See Note 30).

Concentrations of credit risk (whether on or off balance sheet) that arise from financial instruments exist
for counterparties when they have similar economic characteristics that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions.

The major concentrations of credit risk arise by location and type of customer in relation to the Group’s
investments, loans and advances and off-balance sheet commitments.

Total economic sector credit risk concentrations in loans and advances to customers are presented in
the table below:

in BGN ‘000 2017 2016
Trade 973,958 1,161,920
Industry 845,189 975,893
Services 614,790 547,401
Finance 110,290 116,909
Transport, logistics 319,282 346,262
Communications 46,577 115,233
Construction 192,606 176,542
Agriculture 207,877 184,718
Tourist services 168,356 189,645
Infrastructure 467,483 466,536
Private individuals 1,467,237 1,415,105
Other 196,512 70,441
Allowance for impairment (591,859) (825,543)
Total 5,018,298 4,941,062

The amounts reflected in the tables represent the maximum accounting loss that would be recognised
at the statement of financial position date if counterparts failed completely to perform as contracted and
any collateral or security proved to be of no value. The amounts, therefore, greatly exceed expected
losses, which are included in the allowance for impairment.

The Bank has extended loans to enterprises involved in different types of activities but within the same
economic sector - industry. As such the exposures share a similar industry risk. There are three such
groups of enterprises at 31 December 2017 with total exposures outstanding amounting to BGN
206,973 thousand (2016: BGN 211,037 thousand) - ferrous and non-ferrous metallurgy, BGN 80,190
thousand (2016: BGN 60,609 thousand) — mining industry and BGN 84,142 thousand (2016: BGN
115,099 thousand) - power engineering.

The Bank has extended loans, confirmed letters of credit and granted guarantees to 8 individual clients
or groups (2016: 6) with each individual exposure exceeding 10% of the capital base of the Bank. The
total amount of these exposures after offsetting the admissible collateral is BGN 771,986 thousand
which represents 75.78% of the capital base (2016: BGN 550,403 thousand which represented 59.13 %
of the capital base) of which BGN 633,320 thousand (2016: BGN 484,491 thousand) represent loans
and BGN 138,666 thousand (2016: BGN 65,912 thousand) represent guarantees, letters of credit and
other commitments.
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Notes to the financial statements

3.

B. Non-trading activities, continued

(iii)

Risk management disclosures, continued

Credit risk, continued

The biggest loan exposure of the Bank extended to a group of related parties amounts to BGN 247,257
thousand (2016: BGN 225,459 thousand), representing 24.27 % of the Bank's own funds (2016:

24.22%).

Loans extended by the branch in Cyprus amount to BGN 5,921 thousand (gross carrying amount before
any allowances) (2016: BGN 12,508 thousand).

The Bank’s policy is to require suitable collateral to be provided by certain customers prior to the
disbursement of approved loans. Guarantees and letters of credit are also subject to strict credit
assessments before being provided. The agreements specify monetary limits to the Bank’s obligations.
The extent of collateral held for guarantees and letters of credit is 100 percent.

Collateral held against different types of assets:

Type of credit
exposure

Main type of collateral

Repurchase agreements Tradable securities

Loans and advances to
banks

Mortgage loans

Consumer lending

Credit cards

Loans to companies

None

Real estate

Mortgage, warrant, financial
and other collateral

None

Mortgage, pledge of
enterprise, pledge of long-
term tangible assets, pledge
of goods, pledge of other
short-term tangible assets,
financial and other collateral

Collateral coverage ratio

2017
108%

302%

55%

414%

2016
100%

330%

74%

383%

28



Notes to the financial statements

3.

Risk management disclosures, continued

B. Non-trading activities, continued

(iii)

Credit risk, continued

The table below shows a breakdown of total gross loans and advances extended to customers by the
Bank by type of collateral to the amount of the collateral, excluding credit cards in the amount of BGN

246,291 thousand (2016: 243,425 thousand BGN).

in BGN ‘000 2017 2016
Mortgage 1,257,796 1,448,615
Pledge of receivables 1,529,225 1,185,296
Pledge of commercial enterprise 32,390 25,521
Securities 95,379 215,466
Other guaranties 1,780,165 1,810,664
Pledge of goods 13,148 27,550
Pledge of machines 101,650 108,344
Money deposit 28,000 41,914
Stake in capital 19 1
Other collateral 943 12,792
Unsecured 525,151 647,017
Total 5,363,866 5,523,180

Other collateral includes insurance policies up to the amount of the insurance cover, future receivables,

remuneration transfers, etc.

Residential mortgage lending

The table below represents credit exposures from housing and mortgage loans to individual customers
by ranges of loan-to-value (LTV) ratio. LTV is calculated as the ratio of the gross amount of the loan to
the value of the collateral. The gross amount excludes any impairment allowances. The valuation of the
collateral excludes any adjustments for obtaining and selling the collateral. The value of the collateral
for residential mortgage loans is based on the collateral value at origination updated based on changes

in house price indices.

in BGN ‘000 2017 2016
Loan to value (LTV) ratio

Less than 50% 122,014 132,227
51% to 70% 157,231 149,525
71% to 90% 200,500 175,133
91% to 100% 34,513 22,163
More than 100% 77,572 68,642
Total 591,830 547,690
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3.

Risk management disclosures, continued

B. Non-trading activities, continued

(iii)

Credit risk, continued
Loans to corporate customers

The loans to corporate customers are subject to individual credit appraisal and impairment testing. The
general creditworthiness of a corporate customer tends to be the most relevant indicator of credit quality
of a loan. However, collateral provides additional security and the Bank requests corporate borrowers to
provide it. The Bank takes collateral in the form of a first charge over real estate, floating charges over
all corporate assets, and other liens and guarantees.

The Bank routinely analyses collateral for possible changes in value due to market conditions, legal
framework or debtor’s actions. Where such changes lead to a breach in the requirements for sufficiency
of collateral, the Bank requires provision of additional collateral within a certain timeframe.

As at 31 December 2017 the net carrying amount of individually impaired loans to corporate customers
amounts to BGN 559,061 thousand (2016: BGN 505,651 thousand) and the value of collateral held
against those loans amounts to BGN 509,292 thousand (2016: BGN 496,743 thousand).

The Bank constantly monitors the risk of default on already given loans and if there is available data for
potential or actual problems, the Bank prepares an action plan and takes measures for managing the
possible unwanted results, including restructuring of the loans

For the purposes of the disclosure in these financial statements “renegotiated loans” are defined as
loans, which have been renegotiated as a result of a change in the market interest rates, repayment

schedule, upon a client request, and others.

Loans renegotiated through the year

in BGN ‘000

2017 2016

Gross Gross

Type of renegotiation amount of amount of
loans and  Allowance loans and  Allowance
advances to for advances to for
customers impairment customers impairment
Loans to individuals 212,951 16,373 192,019 10,780
Change of maturity 128,199 15,621 120,699 9,816
Change in repayment installments 24 - 3 -
Change of interest rate 20,363 5 39,059 46
Change due to customers request 51,943 20 19,780 12
Other reasons 12,422 727 12,478 906
Loans to companies 1,682,158 8,884 2,209,116 148,626
Change of maturity 391,785 5,046 293,848 2,815
Change in repayment installments 77,268 397 165,046 34,209
Change of interest rate 234,904 399 412,869 517
Change due to customers request 931,764 1,411 1,272,952 107,175
Other reasons 46,437 1,631 64,401 3,910
Total: 1,895,109 25,257 2,401,135 159,406
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Notes to the financial statements

3.

Risk management disclosures, continued

B. Non-trading activities, continued

(iii)

Credit risk, continued

Structure and organization of credit risk management functions

Credit risk management as a comprehensive process is accomplished under the supervision of the
Management Board of the Bank. The Supervisory Board exercises control over the activities of the
Management Board on the credit risk management either directly or through the Risk Committee, which
supports the Supervisory Board with the extensive supervision over the risk management function in the
Bank, including over the formation of risk exposures.

There are collective bodies in the Bank the function of which is to support the activities of the
Management Board on the credit risk management- Credit Council and Restructuring Committee. The
Credit Council supports the adopted credit risk management and forms an opinion on loans as per its
limits of competence. The Restructuring Committee is a specialized body for supervision of the loan
exposures with indicators for deterioration. In addition to the collective bodies in the Bank, there are
other independent specialized bodies - the Risk Analysis and Control Department and the Credit Risk
Management, Monitoring and Provisioning Department, which fulfil the functions of identification,
evaluation and management of the credit risk, including performing additional second control over the
risk exposures. The realization, coordination and current control over the lending process is organized
from the following departments: Corporate Banking, SME financing, Retail Banking, and Loan
Administration, while the problem assets management is performed by the Impaired Assets
Department.

(iv) Government debt exposures

The Bank closely manages the credit risk on government debt exposures and as a result the overall
quality of the government debt portfolio is very high.

The table below shows the carrying amount of the government debt portfolio by country issuer. The
assets are presented without any allowance for impairment. The Bank does not recognise allowance for
impairment against the government debt exposures which are measured at amortised cost as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016 as well as those classified as available for sale.

in BGN ‘000

31.12.2017

Portfolio Bulgaria Slovakia Latvia Lithuania USA
Financial assets held for trading 2,742 - - - -
Investments available for sale 378,607 2,069 70 44,870 187,488

Financial assets held to maturity - - - - -

Total 381,349 2,069 70 44,870 187,488
in BGN ‘000

31 December 2016

Portfolio Bulgaria Slovakia Latvia Lithuania USA
Financial assets held for trading 3,318 - - - -
Investments available for sale 393,592 2,021 69 21,831 55,590
Financial assets held to maturity - - - - 222,501
Total 396,910 2,021 69 21,831 278,091
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Notes to the financial statements
3. Risk management disclosures, continued

B. Non-trading activities, continued

(iv) Government debt exposures, continued

Maturity table of government debt securities by country issuer as at 31 December 2017

in BGN ‘000
From 1 From 3
Uptol to3 monthsto From 1to Over

Country issuer Month  Months 1 year S5years 5years Total
Bulgaria 43,768 - 706 194,098 142,777 381,349
Slovakia - - - - 2,069 2,069
Latvia - - - - 70 70
Lithuania - - - - 44,870 44,870
USA 187,488 - - - - 187,488
Total 231,256 - 706 194,098 189,786 615,846

Maturity table of government debt securities by country issuer as at 31 December 2016

in BGN ‘000
From 1 From 3
Uptol to3 monthsto From1to Over

Country issuer Month  Months 1 year S5years 5years Total
Bulgaria 8,681 4,817 40,818 176,285 166,309 396,910
Slovakia - - - - 2,021 2,021
Latvia - - - - 69 69
Lithuania - - - - 21,831 21,831
USA - 278,091 - - - 278,091
Total 8,681 282,908 40,818 176,285 190,230 698,922

C. Capital adequacy

Since 1 January 2014, the provisions of the CRD IV package have been in force. Through Regulation
(EU) No 575/2013 on prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms and Directive
2013/36/EU on access to the activity of credit institutions and the prudential supervision of credit
institutions and investment firms, CRD IV package transposes into European law the provisions of the
new capital standards for banks — Basel Ill.

Regulatory capital

The equity capital of the Bank for regulatory purposes consists of the following elements:
Common Equity Tier 1 capital

a) issued and paid up capital instruments (ordinary shares);

b) share premium from issuance of ordinary shares;

c) audited retained earnings;

d) accumulated other comprehensive income, including revaluation reserves;
e)other reserves;

Deductions from components of the Common Equity Tier 1 capital include intangible assets.
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Notes to the financial statements

3. Risk management disclosures, continued
C. Capital adequacy, continued

Additional Tier 1 capital

The instruments of Additional Tier 1 capital include hybrid debt (see note 27). Deductions from
components of Tier 1 capital include transitory regulatory adjustments relating to items
that are included in the capital balance or the assets of the Bank, but are treated

differently for capital adequacy regulation.

Tier 2 Capital

Tier 2 capital reflects previous regulatory adjustments related to the revaluation reserve from real

property.

Total own funds

2017 2016
In thousands of BGN
Common Equity Tier 1 capital
Paid up capital instruments 110,000 110,000
() Indirect shareholding in Common Equity Tier 1
capital instruments (185) (93)
Premium reserves 97,000 97,000
Other reserves 612,795 522,609
Accumulated other comprehensive income 24,024 21,957
Deductions from Common Equity Tier 1 capital:
(-) Intangible assets (6,395) (9,010)
Transitional adjustments of Common Equity Tier 1
capital (3,526) (5,179)
Other deductions (10,138) -
Common Equity Tier 1 capital 823,575 737,284

Additional Tier 1 capital instruments

Hybrid debt 195,583 195,583
Tier 1 capital deductions:
Transitional adjustments of Additional Tier 1 capital (1,341) (3,820)
Tier 1 Capital 1,017,817 929,047
Tier 2 Capital
Transitional adjustments of Tier 2 capital 900 1,800
Total own funds 1,018,717 930,847
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3.
C.

Risk management disclosures, continued
Capital adequacy, continued

The Bank calculates the following ratios:

a) the Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio is the Common Equity Tier 1 capital of the institution
expressed as a percentage of the total risk exposure amount;

b) the Tier 1 capital ratio is the Tier 1 capital of the institution expressed as a
percentage of the total risk exposure amount;

c) the total capital ratio is the own funds of the institution expressed as a percentage of
the total risk exposure amount.

The total risk exposure is calculated as the total of the riskweighted assets for credit,
market and operational risk.

The Bank calculates the requirements for credit risk for its exposures in banking and trading portfolios
based on a standardised approach. Exposures are taken into account using their balance sheet amount.
Off-balance-sheet credit-related commitments are taken into account by applying different categories of
conversion factors designed to convert these items into balance sheet equivalents. The resulting
equivalent amounts are then weighted for risk using different percentages depending on the class of
exposure and its credit rating assessment. Various credit risk mitigation techniques are used, for
example collateralised transactions and guarantees. Forwards and options based derivative instruments
are weighted for counterparty credit risk.

The Bank calculates also capital requirements for market risk for foreign currency and commodity
instruments in trading book and banking book.

The Bank calculates capital requirements for operational risk using the basic indicator approach.
Required capital is equal to the average gross annual income over the previous three years multiplied by
a fixed percentage (15%). Respective risk weighted assets are calculated by further multiplication by
12.5.

The total capital adequacy ratio cannot be below 13.5%, the Tier 1 capital adequacy cannot be less
than 11.5%, and the CET1 adequacy cannot be less than 10% (with included capital buffer for systemic
risk of 3% and protective capital buffer of 2.5%).

The Bank has complied with the regulatory capital requirements throughout the period.

Capital adequacy level is as follows:
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Notes to the financial statements

3. Risk management disclosures, continued
C. Capital adequacy, continued
in BGN ‘000 Balance sheet/notional amount Risk weighted assets
2017 2016 2017 2016
Risk weighted assets for credit risk
Balance sheet assets
Exposure class
Central governments or central banks 1,490,553 1,837,716 790 1,376
Multirateral development banks 296 483 - -
Institutions 481,505 421,138 128,067 140,441
Corporates 2,091,664 2,208,269 2,062,591 2,016,011
Retail 1,015,455 859,291 600,479 496,631
Secured by mortgages on immovable property 1,257,197 1,271,225 513,765 535,244
Exposures in default 653,837 602,097 746,972 657,022
Collective investments undertakings 2,549 2,547 2,549 2,547
Equity 53,605 51,574 108,139 106,109
Other items 1,575,276 1,574,572 1,384,248 1,416,000
Total 8,621,937 8,828,912 5,547,600 5,371,381
Off balance sheet items
Exposure class
Institutions - - 28 96
Corporates 392,777 296,601 90,593 109,691
Retail 392,519 369,992 7,488 5,605
Secured by mortgages on immovable property 35,136 31,407 6,718 5,592
Other items - - 57 2
Total 820,432 698,000 104,884 120,986
Derivatives
Exposure class
Central governments or central banks - 587 - -
Institutions 379 1,444 76 289
Corporates 750 72 750 72
Other items 1,115 1,831 1,115 1,831
Total 2,244 3,934 1,941 2,192
Total risk-weighted assets for credit risk 5,654,425 5,494,559
Risk-weighted assets for market risk 6,000 5,625
Risk-weighted assets for operational risk 636,363 542,063
Total risk-weighted assets 6,296,788 6,042,247
Capital adequacy ratios Equity Capital ratios %
2017 2016 2017 2016
Common Equity Tier 1 capital 823,575 737,284 13.08% 12.20%
Tier 1 Capital 1,017,817 929,047 16.16% 15.38%
Total own funds 1,018,717 930,847 16.18% 15.41%
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4. Segment Reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Bank’s geographical segments. The primary format,
geographical segments, is based on the Bank’s management and internal reporting structure.

Reporting and measurement of segment assets and liabilities and segment revenues and results is
based on the accounting policies set out in the accounting policy notes.

Transactions between segments are conducted on an arm’s length basis.
The Bank operates principally in Bulgaria, but also has operations in Cyprus.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, revenue and operating income is
allocated after interbranch eliminations based on the location of the Bank branch that generated the
revenue. Segment assets and liabilities are allocated after interbranch eliminations based on their
geographical location.

in BGN ‘000 Bulgarian operations Foreign operations Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Interest income 339,545 424,110 673 2,203 340,218 426,313
Interest expense (92,520) (118,499) (120) (191) (92,640) (118,690)
Net interest income 247,025 305,611 553 2,012 247,578 307,623
Fee and commission
income 115,911 107,211 739 856 116,650 108,067
Fee and commission
expense (17,781) (18,888) (18) (4) (17,799) (18,892)
Net fee and commission
income 98,130 88,323 721 852 98,851 89,175
Net trading income 14,744 13,584 691 463 15,435 14,047
Administrative expenses (195,380) (183,849 (1,255) (1,206) (196,635) (185,055)
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Assets 8,632,241 8,838,371 10,330 14,099 8,642,571 8,852,470
Liabilities 7,635,163 7,902,333 78,124 108,386 7,713,287 8,010,719
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4. Segment Reporting, continued

The table below shows assets and liabilities and income and expense by business segments as at 31

December 2017.

in BGN ‘000

. T Interest Interest Net fe_e e_md Net trading Other net
Business Assets Liabilities . commission . operating

income expense . income g
income income

Corporate 3,005,609 1,058,238 169,816 -1,364 19,788 - 245
customers
Small and
medium 572,155 206,737 30,703 -528 15,733 1,691
enterprises
Retail Banking 1,440,534 6,073,400 130,977 -64,704 58,836 - 2,522
Treasury 2,180,810 79,077 8,722 -2,736 1,887 15,435 11,644
Other 1,443,463 295,835 - -23,308 2,607 - 11,348
Total 8,642,571 7,713,287 340,218 -92,640 98,851 15,435 27,450
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5.

Financial assets and liabilities
Accounting classification and fair values

The Bank’s accounting policy on fair value measurements is set out in Note 2(d)(vii).

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using:
guoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: inputs are observable date for a given asset or liability. This category includes all instruments
where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable
inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are
valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are based on
guoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments the Bank determines
fair values using other valuation techniques.

Other valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison to
similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, option pricing models and other valuation
models. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest
rates, credit spreads and other premia used in estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, foreign
currency exchange rates, equity and equity index prices and expected price volatilities and correlations.

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that
would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

The Bank uses widely recognised valuation models for determining the fair value of common and more
simple financial instruments, like interest rate and currency swaps that use only observable market data
and require little management judgement and estimation. Observable prices and model inputs are
usually available in the market for listed debt and equity securities, exchange traded derivatives and
simple over the counter derivatives like interest rate swaps. Availability of observable market prices and
model inputs reduces the need for management judgement and estimation and also reduces the
uncertainty associated with determination of fair values. Availability of observable market prices and
inputs varies depending on the products and markets and is prone to changes based on specific events
and general conditions in the financial markets.

However, where the Bank measures portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities on the basis of
net exposures, it applies judgement in determining appropriate portfolio level adjustments such as bid-
ask spread.

Such adjustments are derived from observable bid-ask spreads for similar instruments and adjusted for
factors specific to the portfolio.

For more complex instruments, the Bank uses proprietary valuation models, which usually are
developed from recognised valuation models. Some or all of the significant inputs into these models
may not be observable in the market, and are derived from market prices or rates or are estimated
based on assumptions. Example of instruments involving significant unobservable inputs include certain
over the counter derivatives, certain loans and securities for which there is no active market and
retained interests in securitisations. Valuation models that employ significant unobservable inputs
require a higher degree of management judgement and estimation in the determination of fair value.
Management judgement and estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation
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model to be used, determination of expected future cash flows on the financial instrument being valued,
determination of probability of counterparty default and prepayments and selection of appropriate
discount rates.

The Bank has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This
framework includes an Risk Management function, which is independent of Treasury division and
reports to management, and which has overall responsibility for independently verifying the results of
trading and investment operations and all significant fair value measurements. Specific controls include:

verification of observable pricing;

proposal of new models and changes to existing models is made by the Risk Analysis and Control
Division and approved by the Management Board;

calibration of models against observed market transactions;
analysis and investigation of significant daily valuation movements;

review of significant unobservable inputs, valuation adjustments and significant changes to the fair
value measurement of Level 3 instruments compared to previous month, by Risk Analysis and
Control division.

Where third-party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, are used to measure fair
value, Risk Management division assesses and documents the evidence obtained from the third parties
to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of IFRS. This includes:

verifying that the broker or pricing service is approved by the Bank for use in pricing the relevant
type of financial instrument;

understanding how the fair value has been arrived at and the extent to which it represents actual
market transactions;

when prices for similar instruments are used to measure fair value, how these prices have been
adjusted to reflect the characteristics of the instrument subject to measurement;

where a number of quotes for the same financial instrument have been obtained, how fair value has
been determined using those quotes.
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5. Financial assets and liabilities
Accounting classification and fair values, continued

The tables below set out analysis of financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period classified by fair value hierarchy level framework categorising fair value measurement
The amounts are based on the amounts in the statement of financial position.

in thousands of BGN

31.12.2017 Level 1 Level 2  Level 3 Total
Financial assets held for trading 6,906 - - 6,906
Investments available for sale 613,104 59,925 - 673,029
Derivatives held for risk management 1,092 504 - 1,596
Total 621,102 60,429 - 681,531
in BGN ‘000

31 December 2016 Level 1 Level 2  Level 3 Total
Financial assets held for trading 8,578 - - 8,578
Investments available for sale 475,215 56,141 - 531,356
Derivatives held for risk management 1,795 23 - 1,818
Total 485,588 56,164 - 541,752

Capital investments amounting to BGN 10 thousand at 31 December 2017 and BGN 10 thousand at
31 December 2016 are presented in the statements at their acquisition cost, because their fair value
cannot be reliably measured.

The tables below set out analysis of the fair values of financial instruments not recognised at fair
value, classified by fair value hierarchy level framework categorising fair value measurement
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5.

Financial assets and liabilities, continued
Accounting classification and fair values, continued

in BGN ‘000

31.12.2017
Assets

Cash and balances with Central
Banks

Financial assets held to maturity

Loans and advances to banks
and other financial institutions
Loans and advances to

Total

Liabilities

Due to banks

Due to other customers
Liabilities evidenced by paper
Hybrid debt

Total

in BGN ‘000

31 December 2016
Assets

Cash and balances with Central
Banks

Financial assets held to maturity
Loans and advances to banks
and other financial institutions
Loans and advances to

Total

Liabilities

Due to banks

Due to other customers
Liabilities evidenced by paper
Hybrid debt

Total

Total

Total fair balance

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 values sheet value
- 1,425,252 1,425,252 1,425,252

- 20,146 20,146 19,615

- 54,402 54,402 54,402

- 653,838 4,639,785 5,293,623 5,018,298

- 2,153,638 4,639,785 6,793,423 6,517,567

- 5,743 - 5,743 5,743

- 2,775,979 4,562,282 7,338,261 7,338,375

- 118,487 - 118,487 118,517

- 208,786 - 208,786 208,786

- 3,108,995 4,562,282 7,671,277 7,671,421

Total

Total fair balance

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 values sheet value
- 1,588,754 - 1,588,754 1,588,754
222,501 20,930 - 243,431 243,463
- 54,472 - 54,472 54,472

- 602,097 4,347,663 4,949,760 4,941,062
222,501 2,266,253 4,347,663 6,836,417 6,827,751
- 6,736 - 6,736 6,736

- 2,584,928 5,106,378 7,691,306 7,691,256

- 70,343 - 70,343 70,367

- 208,740 - 208,740 208,740

- 2,870,747 5,106,378 7,977,125 7,977,099
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5. Financial assets and liabilities, continued
Accounting classification and fair values, continued

Where available, the fair value of loans and advances is based on observable market transactions.
Where observable market transactions are not available, fair value is estimated using valuation
models, such as discounted cash flow techniques. Input into the valuation techniques includes
expected lifetime credit losses, interest rates, prepayment rates. For collateral-dependent impaired
loans, the fair value is measured based on the value of the underlying collateral. To improve the
accuracy of the valuation estimate for retail and smaller commercial loans, homogeneous loans are
grouped into portfolios with similar characteristics such as product and borrower type, maturity,
currency, collateral type.

The fair value of deposits from banks and customers is estimated using discounted cash flow
techniques, applying the rates that are offered for deposits of similar maturities and terms. The fair
value of deposits payable on demand is the amount payable at the reporting date.

6. Net interest income
in thousands of BGN 2017 2016
Interest income
Acgquﬂ; yvith and placements to banks and financial 777 809
Retail Banking 121,840 135,478
Corporate customers 169,816 233,786
Small and medium enterprises 30,703 35,528
Microlending 9,137 9,420
Debt instruments 7,945 11,292
340,218 426,313
Interest expense
Deposits from banks - (50)
Deposits from other customers (66,596) (109,181)
Liabilities evidenced by paper (890) (579)
Perpetual debt - (1,137)
Hybrid debt (22,929) (6,695)
Interest on assets cost (2,214) (1,033)
Lease agreements and other (11) (15)
(92,640) (118,690)
Net interest income 247,578 307,623

For 2017 the recognized interest income from individually impaired financial assets (loans to
customers) amounted to BGN 57,728 thousand (2016: BGN 47,634 thousand).
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7. Net fee and commission income

in thousands of BGN

Fee and commission income 2017 2016
Letters of credit and guarantees 2,911 4,306
Payment operations 20,365 17,738
Customer accounts 29,559 26,976
Card services 30,152 28,337
Other 33,663 30,710
116,650 108,067

Fee and commission expense
Letters of credit and guarantees (296) 277)
Payment systems (2,154) (2,034)
Card services (13,051) (11,385)
Other (2,298) (5,196)
(17,799) (18,892)
Net fee and commission income 98,851 89,175

8. Net trading income

in thousands of BGN 2017 2016

Net trading income arises from:

- Debt instruments 218 29
- Equities 247 777
- Foreign exchange rate fluctuations 14,970 13,241
Net trading income 15,435 14,047
9. Other net operating income
in thousands of BGN 2017 2016

Other net operating income arising from:
- net income/(expense) from transactions and revaluation of

gold and precious metals 65 (2)
Rental income 11,283 6,086
- Debt instruments 11,644 4,110
- Equities - 24,188
- income from management of assigned receivables - 3,850
- Gain on administration of loans acquired through business

combination 4,458 7,468

Other net operating income 27,450 45,700

The reported operating income from capital instruments for 2016 includes the profit from the
acquisition of Visa Europe by Visa Inc. amounting to BGN 24,930 thousand.
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10.

11.

12.

Administrative expenses
in thousands of BGN 2017 2016
General and administrative expenses comprise:
- Personnel cost 61,642 57,926
- Depreciation and amortisation 15,725 16,639
- Advertising 17,722 14,421
- Building rent expense 32,443 32,429
-Telecommunication, software and other computer
maintenance 11,217 11,597
- Other expenses for external services 57,886 52,043
Administrative expenses 196,635 185,055
Personnel costs include salaries, social and health security contributions under the provisions of the
local legislation. At 31 December 2017 the total number of employees was 3,045 (31 December 2016:
2,991).
The amounts charged in 2017 for services delivered by the registered auditors separately for
independent financial audit and for other services unrelated to audit amount respectively to BGN 622
thousand and BGN 587 thousand. The amounts charged in 2016 for services delivered by the
registered auditors separately for independent financial audit and for other services unrelated to audit
amount respectively to BGN 361 thousand and BGN 2,987 thousand.
Allowance for impairment
in thousands of BGN 2017 2016
Write-downs
Loans and advances to customers (92,758) (259,183)
Reversal of write-downs
Loans and advances to customers 15,247 104,407
Impairment, net (77,511) (154,776)
The expense for impairment in 2017 and 2016 is due to additional allowances resulting from the
development of credit risk in a period of challenging economic environment and the conservative
approach applied by the Bank in recognising the risk of loss for certain individually impaired exposures.
Other income/(expenses), net
in thousands of BGN 2017 2016
Income from sale of assets 10,616 2,431
Revaluation of investment property - 9,213
(Loss) from sale of investment property (42) (229)
Dividend income 4,433 586
Cost of guarantee schemes (35,537) (35,976)
Reversal of expense for provisions for pending court cases 308 5,541
Other income/(expenses), net (258) 2,112
Total (20,480) (16,322)
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13.

14.

Income tax expense

in BGN ‘000
Current taxes
Deferred taxes (See Note 22)

Income tax expense

Reconciliation between tax expense and the accounting profit is as follows:

in BGN ‘000

Accounting profit before taxation

Corporate tax at applicable tax rate (10% for 2017 and 10% for
2016)

Effect of tax rates of foreign subsidiaries and branches
Tax effect of permanent tax differences

Other differences

Income tax expense

Effective tax rate

Cash and balances with Central Banks

in thousands of BGN
Cash on hand
-in BGN
- in foreign currency
Balances with Central Banks
Current accounts and amounts with foreign banks
Total

2017 2016
(9,707) (681)
485 (9,526)
(9,222) (10,207)
2017 2016
94,688 100,392
9,469 10,039

- 132

(237) 36
(10) -
9,222 10,207
9.74% 10.17%
2017 2016
130,659 106,991
56,395 46,689
875,355 1,134,245
362,843 300,829
1,425,252 1,588,754
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15. Financial assets held for trading
in thousands of BGN 2017 2016

Bonds and notes issued by:
Bulgarian government, rated BBB:

- denominated in BGN 2,726 3,303
- denominated in foreign currencies 16 15
Foreign banks, rated BB - 1,369
Other issuers — equity instruments (unrated) 4,164 3,891
Total 6,906 8,578
16. Investments available for sale
In thousands of BGN 2017 2016

Bonds and notes issued by:
Bulgarian Government

- denominated in BGN 232,090 225,709
- denominated in foreign currencies 146,517 167,883

Foreign governments
- treasury bills 187,488 55,590
- treasury bonds 47,009 23,921
Foreign banks 44,115 44,302
Other issuers — equity instruments 15,820 13,961
Total 673,039 531,366

17. Financial assets held to maturity

Securities held to maturity represent debt investments that the Bank has the intent and ability to hold

to maturity.
in BGN ‘000 2017 2016
Securities held to maturity issued by:
Foreign governments - 222,501
Foreign banks 19,615 20,962
Total 19,615 243,463
18. Loans and advances to banks and other financial institutions

(a) Analysis by type

in thousands of BGN 2017 2016
Placements with banks 21,748 18,607
Receivables under resale agreements 4,977 4,970
Other 27,677 30,895
Total 54,402 54,472

(b) Geographical analysis

in thousands of BGN 2017 2016
Domestic banks and financial institutions 11,680 29,272
Foreign banks and other financial institutions 42,722 25,200
Total 54,402 54,472
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19.

@)

Loans and advances to customers
in thousands of BGN

Retail Banking

- Consumer loans

- Mortgage loans

- Credit cards

- Other programmes and collateralised
financing
Small and medium enterprises
Microlending
Corporate customers
Including receivables from financial lease
Total

in BGN ‘000

Retail Banking

- Consumer loans

- Mortgage loans

- Credit cards

- Other programmes and collateralised
financing
Small and medium enterprises
Microlending
Corporate customers
Including receivables from financial lease
Total

Movement in impairment allowances

in BGN ‘000

Balance as at 01 January 2017
Additional allowances

Amounts released

Write-offs

Effect from change in exchange rates
Balance as at 31 December 2017

31.12.2017

Allowance

for
Gross value  impairment Net value
612,970 (42,663) 570,307
591,830 (30,127) 561,703
246,291 (35,480) 210,811
3,182 - 3,182
643,444 (71,289) 572,155
120,882 (26,351) 94,531
3,391,558 (385,949) 3,005,609
108,218 (24) 108,194
5,610,157 (591,859) 5,018,298
31/12/2016

Allowance

for
Gross value  impairment Net value
491,101 (29,378) 461,723
547,690 (28,376) 519,314
243,425 (27,165) 216,260
130,568 - 130,568
531,839 (67,462) 464,377
107,744 (26,257) 81,487
3,714,238 (646,905) 3,067,333
27,361 (96) 27,265
5,766,605 (825,543) 4,941,062
825,543
92,758
(15,247)
(308,620)
(2,575)
591,859
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20. Property and equipment
Assets
Land and Fixtures Motor under Leasehold
in BGN ‘000 Buildings and fittings vehicles Construction Improvements Total
Cost
At 01 January 2016 17,651 140,384 6,330 25,498 64,665 254,528
Additions - 2 - 7,325 - 7,327
Disposals - (5,260) (231) (6) (578) (6,075)
Transfers - 5,955 155 (8,494) 874 (1,510)
At 31 December 2016 17,651 141,081 6,254 24,323 64,961 254,270
Additions - 3 - 8,991 - 8,994
Disposals (137) (2,826) (68) (371) (530) (3,932)
Transfers 137 4,092 405 (6,532) 1,423 (475)
At 31 December 2017 17,651 142,350 6,591 26,411 65,854 258,857
Amortisation
At 01 January 2016 2,881 112,678 5,436 - 31,961 152,956
Accrued during the year 634 8,781 350 - 3,714 13,479
On disposals - (5,257) (231) - (565) (6,053)
At 31 December 2016 3,515 116,202 5,555 - 35,110 160,382
Accrued during the year 634 8,091 312 - 3,598 12,635
On disposals (17) (2,816) (68) (530) (3,431)
At 31 December 2017 4,132 121,477 5,799 - 38,178 169,586
Carrying amount
At 01 January 2016 14,770 27,706 894 25,498 32,704 101,572
At 31 December 2016 14,136 24,879 699 24,323 29,851 93,888
At 31 December 2017 13,519 20,873 792 26,411 27,676 89,271

The fair value of assets constituting land and buildings was determined by independent property
assessors holding recognised professional qualification and recent experience in assessing property
with similar location and category. The Bank's policy requires that independent assessors determine
the fair value sufficiently frequently so as to ensure that the balance sheet value does not differ
significantly from the fair value at the end of the reporting period. As at 31 December 2017 the fair
value of land and buildings was not significantly different from their balance sheet value as at that
date. The fair value of land and buildings is categorised as Level 3 fair value on the basis of incoming
data on the assessment methodology used.
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20. Property and equipment, continued

Significant unobservable

Connection between key
unobservable inputs and fair

Assessment methodology inputs value

1. Discounted cash flows: this valuation model 1. Expected market growth of The fair value will increase

takes into account the present value of cash rent — (4.5-6.8%,  weighted (gecrease) where:

flows generated by property, taking into average 5.6%). _ « the expected market growth of
2. Period for cancellation (6  yentis higher (lower);

account the expected growth of rental prices,
the period required for cancellation, the level
of occupancy, premiums such as periods in
which no rent is paid and other expenses
which are not paid by tenants. The expected
net cash flows are discounted using discount
rates adjusted for risk. Among other factors,
when determining the discount rate, the quality
of the building and its location are taken into
account (first-rate or second-rate), as well as
the creditworthiness of the tenant and the
duration of the loan agreement.

months on average after each
rental agreement).

3. Occupancy (90-95%,
weighted average 92.5%).

4. Periods when no rent is paid
(3 year for new rental
agreement).

5. Risk adjusted discount rate
(7.5-8%, weighted average
7.75%).

e periods for cancellation are
shorter (longer);

« Occupancy is higher (lower);

« the periods when no rent is paid
are shorter (longer); or

« the risk adjusted discount rate
is lower (higher).

2. Market approach/Comparative approach.
This method is based on the comparison of
the property being evaluated to other similar
properties which have been sold recently or
which are available for sale. Using this
method, the value of a given property is
determined in direct comparison to other
similar properties which have been sold in a
period of time close to the time when the
valuation is made. Based on detailed
research, review and analysis of data from the
property market, the value is formed and it is
the most accurate indicator of market value.

This method consists of using information
about actual transactions in the real estate
market in the last six months. Successful
application of this method is only possible
where a trustworthy database is available as
regards actual transactions with properties
similar to the property being valued.
Information from real estate sites, local press
and other such refers to future investment
intentions of the seller and cannot be deemed
a trustworthy source of information. When
using such sites, the offer price for each
analogous property is discounted at the
valuator’s discretion, but by no less than 5%.

1. Expected market growth of
property  (5-10%, weighted
average 7.5%).

2. Time required to effect the
sale (6 months on average
after the offer is placed).

3. Transaction success rate
(90-95%, weighted average
92.5%).

4. Location (1.0-1.05, weighted
average 1.025).

5. Property status (1.0-1.1,
weighted average 1.05).

The fair value will increase
(decrease) where:

o the expected market growth of
property is higher (lower);

e the period of time required for
the sale is shorter (longer);

ethere is a change in the
technical condition of the
property
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21.

22.

23.

Intangible assets

in BGN ‘000 Software and licences Total
Cost

At 01 January 2016 28,548 28,548
Disposals (2) (2)
Transfers 1,510 1,510
At 31 December 2016 30,056 30,056
Disposals (5) (5)
Transfers 475 475
At 31 December 2017 30,526 30,526
Amortisation

At 01 January 2016 17,888 17,888
Accrued during the year 3,160 3,160
On disposals (2) (2)
At 31 December 2016 21,046 21,046
Accrued during the year 3,090 3,090
On disposals (5) (5)
At 31 December 2017 24,131 24,131
Carrying amount

At 01 January 2016 10,660 10,660
At 31 December 2016 9,010 9,010
At 31 December 2017 6,395 6,395

Deferred Taxation

Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using a

principal tax rate of 10%.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items:

in BGN ‘000 Assets Liabilities Net

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Property, equipment and intangibles - - 2,336 2,679 2,336 2,679
Investment Property - - 11,956 12,105 11,956 12,105
Other (371) (378) 334 334 (37 (44)
Net tax (assets)/liabilities (371) (378) 14,626 15,118 14,255 14,740

Movements in temporary differences in 2017 at the amount of BGN 485 thousand are recognised in

the profit for the year.

Repossessed assets

in thousands of BGN

Land

Buildings

Machines, plant and vehicles
Fixtures and fittings

Total

2017 2016
535,164 402,191
304,731 465,317
136,773 160,473

766 810
977,434 1,028,791
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23.

Repossessed assets, continued

Due to the change in the intended use of some of the repossessed assets during the previous
reporting period, some assets show as an increase in the "Land" section in 2017, amounting to BGN

129,496 thousand (2016 - BGN 30,377 thousand).

Repossessed assets acquired as collateral are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The net realizable value of the lands and buildings is approximately equal to their fair value. The

assessment methodology for land and buildings is given in note 20.

23a. Investment Property

23b.

in BGN ‘000
Balance as at 01 January 2017
Write-offs upon sale

Balance as at 31 December 2017

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries (see Note 34) are as follows:

in BGN ‘000

Entity:

First Investment Finance B.V., Netherlands
Diners Club Bulgaria AD

First Investment Bank - Albania Sh.a.
Debita OOD

Realtor OOD

Fi Health Insurance AD

Balkan Financial Services EAD
Turnaround Management EOOD
Creative Investment EOOD

Lega Solutions EOOD

AMC Imoti EOOD

Total

% held

100%

94.79%
100%

70%
51%

59.10%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

222,267

(4,055)

218,212
2017 2016
3,947 3,947
5,443 5,443
23,420 23,420
105 105
77 77
3,315 3,315
50 50
36,357 36,357
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23c.

24,

25.

26.

Other assets

in thousands of BGN

Deferred expense
Gold

Other assets
Total

Due to banks

in thousands of BGN

Term deposits

Payable on demand
Total

Due to other customers
in thousands of BGN

Retail customers
- current accounts

- term and savings deposits

Businesses and public institutions

- current accounts
- term
Total

Liabilities evidenced by paper

in thousands of BGN

Acceptances under letters of credit
Debt related to agreements for full swap of profitability
Financing from financial institutions

Total

2017 2016
10,086 9,877
6,089 6,992
99,605 75,775
115,780 92,644
2017 2016
5,743 6,736
5,743 6,736
2017 2016
988,942 788,418
5,086,170 5,588,165
858,977 920,115
404,286 394,558
7,338,375 7,691,256
2017 2016
16,941 21,602
73,334 -
28,242 48,765
118,517 70,367
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26.

27.

Other borrowed funds, continued

Financing from financial institutions through extension of loan facilities can be analyzed as follows:

in thousands of BGN

Lender
State Fund Agriculture

European Investment
Fund — JEREMIE 2
Bulgarian Bank for
Development AD

Total

in BGN ‘000

Lender

State Fund Agriculture

European Investment
Fund — JEREMIE 2
Bulgarian Bank for
Development AD

Total

Hybrid debt

in thousands of BGN

Amortised cost as at 31

Interest rate Maturity December 2017
2% 20.07.2018 - 15.02.2020 373

0% -1.301% 30/09/2025 24,254
3.50% 30/03/2019 3,615
28,242

Amortised cost as at 31

Interest rate Maturity December 2016
2% 20.01.2017 - 15.02.2020 690

0% - 1.329% 30/09/2025 42,050
3.50% 30/03/2019 6,025

48,765

Hybrid debt with principal EUR 40 mio
Hybrid debt with principal EUR 60 mio

Total

in BGN ‘000

Hybrid debt with principal EUR 40 mio
Hybrid debt with principal EUR 60 mio

Total

Principal Amortised cost as at 31
amount December 2017
78,233 84,929
117,350 123,857
195,583 208,786
Principal Amortised cost as at 31
amount December 2016
78,233 84,910
117,350 123,830
195,583 208,740
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27.

28.

29.

Hybrid debt, continued

In March 2011 the Bank issued a hybrid instrument (bond issue) and, after obtaining permission from
the Bulgarian National Bank, included it as Tier 1 capital. The Bank placed the bond issue under private
subscription with a total nominal value of EUR 20,000 thousand, constituting the first tranche of a bond
issue with an envisaged total amount of up to EUR 40,000 thousand. In June 2012 the Bank issued the
second tranche of the instrument, also amounting to EUR 20,000 thousand and following permission
from the Bulgarian National Bank included in its Tier 1 capital.

In November 2012 the Bank issued a hybrid instrument (bond issue) and, after obtaining permission
from the Bulgarian National Bank, included it as Tier 1 capital. The Bank placed the bond issue under
private subscription with a total nominal value of EUR 20,000 thousand, constituting the first tranche of
a bond issue with an envisaged total amount of up to EUR 60,000 thousand. In November 2013 the
Bank issued the second and third tranches of the instrument, amounting to a total of EUR 40,000
thousand and following permission from the Bulgarian National Bank included them in its Tier 1 capital.

The bonds under both instruments are registered, dematerialized, interest-bearing, perpetual,
unsecured, freely transferable, non-convertible, deeply subordinated and without incentive to redeem.
The two bond issues were admitted for trading at the Luxembourg Stock Exchange in 2014 based on
prospects approved by the Luxembourg Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier.

The two hybrid instruments fully comply with the requirements of Regulation 575/2013 and are included
in the additional tier 1 capital.

Other liabilities

in thousands of BGN 2017 2016
Liabilities to personnel 2,490 2,317
Provisions for pending court cases 836 1,144
Other payables 22,174 15,350
Total 25,500 18,811

Capital and reserves

(&) Number and face value of registered shares as at 31 December 2017

As at 31 December 2017 the registered share capital of the Bank is BGN 110,000,000 divided into
110,000,000 ordinary dematerialized shares with voting rights of BGN 1 par value each. All the shares
have been fully paid-up.

The share capital of the Bank was increased from BGN 100,000,000 to BGN 110,000,000 as a result
of the successful IPO of new 10,000,000 dematerialized shares through the Bulgarian Stock Exchange
— Sofia and was registered at the Commercial Register of Sofia City Court on 4 June 2007. In order to
facilitate the IPO and prior to its launching the par value of the Bank’s shares was reduced from BGN
10 to BGN 1 by a decision of the General Meeting of the Shareholders without affecting the aggregate
amount of the share capital and the individual shareholdings.

(b) Shareholders

The table below shows those shareholders of the Bank holding shares as at 31 December 2017
together with the number and percentage of total issued shares.

Number of % of issued share

shares capital

Mr. Ivailo Dimitrov Mutafchiev 46,750,000 42.50

Mr. Tzeko Todorov Minev 46,750,000 42.50
Other shareholders (shareholders holding shares subject

to free trade on the Bulgarian Stock Exchange — Sofia) 16,500,000 15.00

Total 110,000,000 100.00
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Currently all newly issued shares plus the part of the existing shares held by First Financial Brokerage
House Ltd. sold to new investors under the IPO (a total of 16,500,000 shares) are freely traded on the
floor of Bulgarian Stock Exchange — Sofia.

(c) Statutory reserve

Statutory reserves include amounts set aside for purposes regulated by local legislation. According to
Bulgarian legislation the Bank is oblidged to set aside at least 1/10 of its annual profit as statutory
reserve until the total amount of reserves reaches 1/10 of the Bank’s share capital.

In 2017, as in the previous year, the Bank did not distribute dividends.
30. Commitments and contingent liabilities
(a) Contingent liabilities

The Bank provides financial guarantees and letters of credit to guarantee the performance of
customers to third parties. These agreements have fixed limits and generally extend for a period of up
to two years.

The contractual amounts of commitments and contingent liabilities are set out in the following table by
category. The amounts reflected in the table for contingent liabilities represent the maximum
accounting loss that would be recognised in the statement of financial position if counterparts failed
completely to perform as contracted and any collateral or security proved to be of no value.

in BGN ‘000 2017 2016
Bank guarantees 235,120 214,978
Unused credit lines 505,350 393,660
Letters of credit 17,796 17,120
Other contingent liabilities 62,166 72,242
Total 820,432 698,000

These commitments and contingent liabilities have off balance-sheet credit risk and only organization
fees and accruals for probable losses are recognised in the statement of financial position until the
commitments are fulfilled or expire. Most of the contingent liabilities and commitments will expire
without being advanced in whole or in part. Therefore, the amounts do not represent expected future
cash flows.

The contingent loan is a framework agreement for collateral management under numerous loan
transactions made with one or more clients. The contingent loan does not lead to an obligation of the
Bank to extend specific financial instruments. The conclusion of a specific loan transaction with the
Bank client, e.g. extension of a loan or overdraft, contingent liabilities, such as bank guarantees and
letters of credit, is subject to a separate decision and approval of the Bank.

As at the date of the report there are no other significant contingent liabilities and commitments
requiring additional disclosure.
31. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprises the following
balances with less than 90 days original maturity:

in BGN ‘000 2017 2016
Cash and balances with Central Banks 1,425,252 1,588,754
Loans and advances to banks and financial institutions with

original maturity less than 3 months 42,103 44,453
Total 1,467,355 1,633,207
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32. Average balances

The average carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities are set out in the table below. The
amounts are calculated by using a simple average of monthly balances for all instruments.

in BGN ‘000
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and balances with Central Banks

Financial assets held for trading
Investments available for sale
Financial assets held to maturity

Loans and advances to banks and other financial

institutions
Loans and advances to customers

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks

Due to other customers
Liabilities evidenced by paper
Perpetual debt

Hybrid debt

33. Related party transactions

2017

1,494,268
7,966
602,425
79,456

44,442
4,966,139

6,809
7,430,423
124,410

208,053

2016

1,428,175
9,787
464,860
54,187

130,377
5,033,191

10,090
7,379,849
105,238
7,692
199,760

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control or exercise significant
influence over the other party on making financial or operational decisions, or both parties are under

common control.

A number of banking transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of
business. These include loans, deposits and other transactions. These transactions were carried out
on commercial terms and at market rates. The volume of these transactions and outstanding balances

at the end of respective periods are as follows:

Type of related party

in BGN ‘000

Loans

Loans outstanding at beginning of the period
Loans issued/(repaid) during the period

Loans outstanding at end of the period

Deposits and loans received:
At beginning of the period
Received/(paid) during the period
At the end of the period

Deposits placed

Deposits at beginning of the period

Parties that control or manage

Enterprises under common

the Bank control

2017 2016 2017 2016
1,363 1,500 10,729 28,156
(610) (137) (420) (17,427)
753 1,363 10,309 10,729
7,831 7,836 21,089 65,432
877 (5) 80,155 (44,343)
8,708 7,831 101,244 21,089
- - 12,477 9,822
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Type of related party

in BGN ‘000

Interest income

Interest expense

Fee and commission income

Deposits placed/(matured) during the year

Deposits at end of the period

Other receivables

At beginning of the period
Received/(paid) during the period
At the end of the period

Ot